ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 10, 2009
3:07 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Bob Herron, Co-Chair
Representative Wes Kel ler, Co-Chair
Representati ve John Coghill
Representative Bob Lynn

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representati ve Sharon Ci ssnha
Representati ve Li ndsey Hol nes

VEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nenbers present

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 10

Uging the United States Congress to inprove health care for
vet erans.

- MOVED CSHIJR 10 (HSS) OUT OF COW TTEE

Presentation: Alaska Brain Injury Network: Traumatic Brain
I njury

- HEARD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HIR 10
SHORT TI TLE: VETERANS' HEALTH CARE
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) GUTTENBERG

01/ 30/ 09 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 30/ 09 (H) MV, STA, HSS

02/ 24/ 09 (H) M.V AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124

02/ 24/ 09 (H) Moved CSHIR 10(M.V) Qut of Committee
02/ 24/ 09 (H) M NUTE( MLV)

02/ 25/ 09 (H) M.V RPT CS(M.V) 6DP

02/ 25/ 09 (H) DP:  KAWASAKI, OLSON, HARRI'S, LYNN,

BUCH, GATTO

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -1- March 10, 2009



03/ 02/ 09 (H STA REFERRAL WAI VED
03/ 10/ 09 (H HSS AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

HOMRD COLBERT, Commander

Local Disabled American Veterans (DAV) Post Chapter 4
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified about HIR 10.

M KE WALSH, Adj ut ant

Local Disabled American Veterans (DAV) Post Chapter 4
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified about HIR 10.

REPRESENTATI VE DAVI D GUTTENBERG

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented HIR 10 as the sponsor,
responded to questi ons.

SHELLY HUGHES, CGovernnent Affairs Director

Al aska Primary Care Associ ation (APCA)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 10.

EVANCELYN DOTOVAI N, President & CEO

Al aska Native Health Board ( ANHB)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 10.

MCHUGH PI ERRE, Director of Commrunicati ons;

Legi sl ative Liaison

O fice of the Conm ssioner/ Adjutant General
Departnment of Mlitary & Veterans' Affairs (DWA)
Fort Ri chardson, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified about HIR 10.

JILL HODGES, Executive Director

Al aska Brain Injury Network, Inc. (ABIN)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified about traumatic brain injury.

CHRI STI E ARTUSO, Director of Neurosciences
Provi dence Al aska Medi cal Center
Anchor age, Al aska

and

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 2- March 10, 2009



PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented a Power Point and answered
guestions about traumatic brain injury.

CHRI STI NE DECOURTNEY

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified about her experiences wth
traumatic brain injury.

PATRI CIl A CHAPMAN

Ket chi kan, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified about her experiences as a nenber
of a brain injury support group.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:07:41 PM

CO- CHAIR BOB HERRON cal l ed the House Health and Social Services
St andi ng Commttee nmeeti ng to or der at 3. 07 p. m
Representatives Herron, Keller, Coghill, G ssna, and Lynn were
present at the call to order. Representatives Seaton and Hol nes

arrived as the nmeeting was in progress.

HIR 10- VETERANS' HEALTH CARE

3:08: 02 PM

CO CHAI R HERRON announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE JONT RESOLUTION NO 10, Urging the United States
Congress to inprove health care for veterans. [Before the
commttee was CSHIR 10(M.V). ]

3:09: 43 PM

HOMRD COLBERT, Commander, Local Disabled Anerican Veterans
(DAV) Post Chapter 4, observed that HIJR 10 addressed rural and
native areas, and he offered his belief that this was
di scrimnatory against all veterans. He enphasi zed that the DAV

did not "di scrimnate agai nst col or, religion, creed,
anything...we are all brothers.” He explained that the
| ogistics in Alaska were a "nightmare." He reported that there
was not a [Veterans Adm nistration (VA)] hospital, only a clinic
in Al aska. He affirmed that he had worked for several years

Wi th Representative Kerttula regarding care for veterans in SE
Al aska, though he nmentioned that progress had been very sl ow

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 3- March 10, 2009



3:12: 57 PM

M KE WALSH, Adjutant, Local D sabled Anmerican Veterans (DAV)
Post Chapter 4, declared support for the recommendation that the
United States Congress provide adequate funds for the veterans'
needs. He noted the increase of injuries to mlitary personne
in Irag, and he affirnmed support for increased funding for
traumatic brain injuries (TBI) and nental health centers.

3:16:42 PM

MR. COLBERT offered his belief that there were not any
psychiatrists or analysts to help veterans in Juneau that "know
what they are doing," as they do not have any conbat experience.
He called attention to the lack of housing for veterans when
they arrive from out of town for any nedical service. He
reported that 540,000 nedals had been awarded since the
begi nning of conmbat in Iraq and Afghanistan, and that for each
of these nedals "there's a consequence, there's a part of a
man's |ife that has totally changed."” He pointed out that
veterans had made the sacrifice, and that they deserved the
benefits.

3:18:17 PM

MR. WALSH affirmed his support for federal and state funding to
ensure that veterans had access to quality health care at
community health centers. He explained the DAV outreach program
in Southeast Al aska. He offered support of Ilocal care for
veterans in the small communities.

3:19:56 PM
MR. COLBERT noted that a new facility for wonmen veterans

suffering from Post Traumatic Stress Disorder (PTSD) had opened
in Menlo Park, California, yet there was not any facility for

wormren conbat veterans in Al aska. He asked if any of the $22
mllion VA allocation for rural health care would be apportioned
to Al aska.
3:21: 33 PM

MR. WALSH expressed support for electronic clains if adequate
privacy was maintai ned.

3:22:29 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -4- March 10, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE DAVI D GUTTENBERG Al aska State Legislature, noted
that Senator Lisa Mirkowski had suggested for Al askans to rem nd
the U S. Congress about Alaskan issues. He reported that
veterans in Al aska were not getting the necessary health care.
He cited inadequate facilities, inadequate delivery systens, and

di stance as problens. He expressed his desire to ensure that
the VA had state wide service in all the conmunities. He
recogni zed that travel was a hardship. He acknow edged that a
new generation of veterans endured new challenges. He

enphasi zed that veterans had earned the right for health care
benefits w thout undue hardships, and he urged the U S. Congress
to "do a better job than they have been doing right now "

3:24:51 PM

CO CHAI R HERRON asked for Representative CQuttenberg to comment
on the not yet offered anmendnent to CSHIJIR 10 (MV). [ I ncl uded
in the nenbers' packets. Text provided bel ow. ]

3:25: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE  GUTTENBERG agreed that the amendnent was
succinct, and he offered his support for the not yet offered
amendment .

3:25: 33 PM
Co- Chair Herron opened public testinony.
3:25:55 PM

SHELLY HUGHES, Governnent Affairs Director, Alaska Primary Care
Associ ation (APCA), noted that she was the wife and the nother
of veterans. She testified that this was an inportant
resolution as there had not been very nuch response from the
Vet erans Admi nistration (VA). She expressed concern for rural
veterans w thout access to VA health care facilities. She
explained that required care was only received if the nedical
condition was mlitary service related and net certain criteria.
She reported that veterans either did not receive the needed
care or they went to the Conmmunity Health Centers (CHC) or the
tribal health clinics, neither of which received reinbursenent
fromthe VA. She offered support for a partnership between the
VA and the Departnent of Health and Human Services to streanline
the process. She directed attention to the increasing health
needs of aging veterans and returning veterans. She pointed out

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 5- March 10, 2009



that CHCs were in the local communities, so that famly nenbers
wer e avail abl e for support.

3:28: 55 PM

EVANCELYN DOTOVAI N, President & CEQ, Al aska Native Health Board
(ANHB), said that ANHB supported HIJR 10. She stressed that the
services and funding should "follow the veteran.” She expl ai ned
that tribal health provided health service to veterans, but did
not receive any reinbursenent fromthe VA

3:30:12 PM

MCHUGH PI ERRE, Director of Communications; Legislative Liaison
Ofice of the Conm ssioner/Adjutant GCeneral, Departnent of
Mlitary & Veterans' Affairs (DWA), stated that DWA had
concerns for the sharing of federal funding wth Al askan
agenci es.

3:31:13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG reiterated that the veterans deserved
the benefits, and he noted that other states also had this sane
probl em

3:32: 24 PM
[ Co- Chair Herron closed public testinony.]
3:32:33 PM

CO- CHAIR KELLER noved to adopt Anmendnent 1, |abeled 26-
LS0313\S. 1, Bailey, 3/10/09, which read:

Page 4, following line 10:

Insert new material to read:

" FURTHER RESOLVED t hat t he Al aska State
Legislature urges the United States Congress to ensure
that health care services follow veterans to where
they live and work so that veterans are not obligated
to search for the veterans' services to which they are
entitled; and be it"

There being no objection, Anmendnent 1 was adopt ed.

3:33:11 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 6- March 10, 2009



CO CHAI R KELLER noved to report CSHIJR 10 (M.V), as anended, out
of comittee W th i ndi vi dual recommendat i ons and t he
acconpanying fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHIR 10
(HSS) was reported from the House Health and Social Services
Standi ng Comm ttee.

Present ati on: Alaska Brain Injury Network: Traumatic Brain
| njury

3:34:53 PM

CO CHAI R HERRON announced that the next order of business would
be a presentation on traumatic brain injury (TBI) and a Power
Point, "Conbating T.B.l. in Alaska" by the Alaska Brain Injury
Network. [Included in the nmenbers' packets.]

3:35: 20 PM

JILL HODGES, Executive Director, Alaska Brain Injury Network
(ABIN), reflected that there had been good discussion at the
| ast House Health and Social Services Standing Committee neeting
about prevention of brain injuries. She commented that both the
mlitary and the tribal system both had recognized the
chal l enges of traumatic brain injuries.

3:36:32 PM

[ Ms. Hodges showed a short video about, WIIl and Jennie, two
Al askans with traumatic brain injuries.]

3:48: 14 PM

M5. HODGES pointed out that WII and Jennie were able to
function in school and be the best that they could be. She
identified the three prograns that she wanted to highlight: a
solution to fund access for needed care, a neans to devel op
these prograns in Alaska, and a system to arrange case
managenent for nore access to care.

3:49:17 PM

CHRI STIE ARTUSO, Director of Neurosciences, Providence Al aska
Medi cal Center, stated that Alaska was the |eading state for
traumatic brain injury (TBlI) to children, adolescents, and ol der
adults, and second for overall TBIs. She directed attention to
her Power Point, "Conbating T.B.l. in Al aska" and referred to
slide 3, "Recent case ...." She described the patient to have

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -7- March 10, 2009



had a T.B.l. associated with al cohol consunption. She detail ed
his nmultiple hospitalizations, the unreinbursed healthcare
costs, and his assaults on 27 staff nenbers, and opined that
this was the result of a lack of a location that net his needs
in Alaska, and his lack of resources to go out of state.

3:51: 21 PM

M5. ARTUSO spoke about slide 4, "A growng public health
crisis,” and she read "The human brain itself controls physical,
cognitive and behavioral functions.” She pointed out that the
nmedi cal industry focused on the physical functions, but that she
woul d discuss the cognitive and behavioral functions. She
explained that a traumatic brain injury (TBI) could be a blow, a
jolt, or a penetrating injury to the head which could
tenporarily or permanently disrupt normal function. She showed
slide 5, which depicted Alaskans engaged in adventuresone
activities.

3:52:17 PM

M5. ARTUSO said that even helnets did not guarantee protection
from TBI. She commented on slide 6, "Causes of T.B.l1," and
listed sone of the causes. She explained that inprovised

explosive devices (IEDs) were a leading cause for mlitary
personnel and that shock blast could have an effect for 100
feet. She observed that, simlar to a broken leg, brain
injuries needed tine to heal.

3:53:19 PM

M5. ARTUSO expl ained the diagram on slide 7, "Sinplified Brain
Behavi or Rel ationships,” which described the functions for the
different |obes of the brain. She said that a brain injury
coul d have no obvious signs or synptons. She showed slide 8, a
pi cture of a game of hockey.

3:53: 58 PM

M5. ARTUSO introduced slide 9, "Meet Jonathan...." She
descri bed Jonathan to be a 14 year old, 'A student, who was
hurt pl ayi ng hockey. She shared that the CT scan of the brain
did not show anything out of the ordinary, so Jonathan played

soccer the next night. She disclosed that it was the soccer
coach who realized that sonmething was not right wth Jonathan.
She discussed the tests that were then given to Jonathan. She

spoke about the I MPACT (I nmedi ate Post-Concussi on Assessnent and

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 8- March 10, 2009



Cognitive Testing) program which wused a conputer based
cognitive test of nenory, as nmenory was a major brain function
She enphasized that proper gear was only part of the concern,
and that awareness of the significance of inpact related
injuries was even nore inportant. She spoke about the danger of
second inpact injuries.

3:57:27 PM

M5. ARTUSO reported on slide 10, "Significance in Al aska," and
reported that TBIs occurred statewide to alnost 1 out of 1,000
people, and to nore than 2 out of 1,000 in Southcentral Al aska.
She revealed that Al aska was second in the nation for the
overall incidence of TBI, and that 32 percent of conpleted
suicides in Alaska had a history of TBI.

3:57:57 PM
IVB. ARTUSO directed attention to slide 11, "Mlitary
significance..." and she noted that TBI was historically present

in 14 - 20 percent of surviving casualty reports, but that this
percentage had increased wth the conflicts in Irag and
Af ghani st an. She reported that the only cognitive therapies in
Al aska were "for-pay" services. She enphasized that specific
therapy in a controlled environment with trained support staff
was necessary to re-teach use of the non-injured parts of the
brai n.

3:59:45 PM

MS. ARTUSO turned to slide 12, "Ongoing inpact...." and reported
that mlitary sources identified the "lack of conmunity-based
services as a loomng barrier to treatnment.” She further noted
that the Department of Defense had estimated that 10 - 20
percent of soldiers would incur a TBI.

4:00: 25 PM

M5. ARTUSO detailed slide 13, "Cost of Care in Al aska," and
related that Providence Al aska Medical Center diagnosed al nost
1300 patients with brain injury in 2006 and 2007. She shared
that the cost to patients with mld to noderate TBls during the
third quarter of 2008 was nore than $500, 000.

4:00: 57 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -9- March 10, 2009



M5. ARTUSO spoke about patients with stroke, as described on
slide 14, "Acquired Brain Injury.” She listed strokes in Al aska
to be the fourth |eading cause of death, the |eading cause of
disability, and the highest rate for nortality in the US. She
detailed the advances to stroke support currently being
inplemented in Alaska, which included telenedicine carts, a
stroke neurol ogi st, and new t her api es.

4:02:51 PM

M5. ARTUSO continued on to slide 15, "Acquired Brain Injury" and
revealed that, in 2005 there were alnpost 3000 strokes in
Al aska, and that an additional 8000 Alaskans l|lived with the
effects from stroke. She enphasized the need for ongoing
cognitive rehabilitation services in Al aska.

4:03: 57 PM

IVB. ARTUSQ, referring to slide 16, "Al aska's
scorecard. .. Docunented success...." said that public awareness
had lead to an overall decrease in the incidences of TBI. She

noted that TBIs from ATV and falls were the exception.

4: 04: 31 PM

MS. ARTUSO nentioned slide 17, "National Standard of Care" and
stated that this "early, i ntensive acute treatnent and
rehabilitation" was available in Al aska. She called attention

to the lack of a full continuum of care in Al aska.
4:05:19 PM

M5. ARTUSO di scussed slide 18, "The tine to act is now..," and
shared that there was a need "to facilitate nore public and
private cooperation in all of the aspects: awareness, education,
treatnment, and research.” She stated enphatically that Al askans
"deserve no | ess."

4:05: 39 PM

M5. ARTUSO cited slide 19, "Wat is needed...." and shared that
a continuum of care for TBlI patients was being devel oped that
i ncluded both day and residential prograns. She announced the

necessity of a funding source for Medicaid patients.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 10- March 10, 2009



M5. HODGES reported that SB 118, "An Act relating to nedica
assi stance coverage for traumatic brain injury services," was
recently introduced to target the needs for this group.

4:07:21 PM

M5. ARTUSO expl ai ned slide 20, "Wy a Wiver?" She shared that
23 other states had Medicaid waivers, and that this was a
foundation to start the prograns. She supported the need for
waivers to allow Medicaid-eligible individuals to [Ilive
i ndependently in the comunity, rather than in a hospital or
nursing facility.

4:08: 01 PM

M5. ARTUSO sunmarized slide 21, "Waivers on the national scene”
and noted that, since 1991, 23 states had recogni zed the need
for additional funding for the TBI popul ation. She shared that
many states had nultiple Medicaid waivers for home and
rehabilitative services for TBlI patients. She asked the
eligibility be redefined, and explained that waivers "were
establ i shed because the states |acked the capacity to provide
t hese special services to individuals with brain injury.”

4:09: 35 PM

M5. ARTUSO read from slide 22, "National significance...,"” that
"six states reported that prior to their waiver, Medicaid
eligible individuals [with brain injuries] were frequently
pl aced in specialized, high cost facilities outside the state.”
She confirnmed that the decision to establish waivers was an
effort by the state to keep its citizens in the communities with
their famlies.

4:09: 57 PM

M5. ARTUSO conmented that slide 23, "Way Now?" was a proactive
response to neet the service needs of TBI individuals. She
reported that the Alaska Brain Injury Network had a structured
10-year plan that woul d decrease the out of state placenent.

4:11:12 PM

CO CHAI R HERRON asked how many brain injuries the average person
recei ved.

4:11:51 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -11- March 10, 2009



M5. ARTUSO revealed that, until recently, concussions were not

recognized as a brain injury. She noted that the different
| evel s of severity had allowed for a different philosophy of
response. She explained that the recent devel opment of tests

now reveal ed the changes of brain function. She said that nost
peopl e had probably suffered a brain injury, but that there were
not any published statistics.

4:12:57 PM

COCHAIR HERRON asked if there was a danger from mnor
repetitive injuries to the brain.

4:13: 33 PM

MS. ARTUSO agr eed.

4:13: 39 PM

M5. HODGES nentioned that articles had been witten, based on
concussions to NFL players, which detailed the deep damage to
the brain fromrepetitive concussions.

4:14: 26 PM

CO CHAI R HERRON asked why Al aska was |leading the nation in TB
injuries to teens.

4:15:12 PM

M5. ARTUSO pointed out that Alaska had a young, physically
active popul ation who participated in TBI potential activities.

4:15:41 PM
Co- Chair Herron opened public testinony.
4:16: 04 PM

CHRI STI NE DECOURTNEY said that she had worked for Alaska triba
heal t h. She shared that she had suffered two TBlIs about 11
nmont hs apart. She stated that the synptons had occurred without
any physical signs. She opined that it was her own initiative
to seek a provider with a definitive answer that allowed her
recovery. She said that it was very difficult to find any

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -12- March 10, 2009



answers in Al aska, and she stressed that Al askans deserved the
opportunity to find TBlI resources in Al aska.

4:20:16 PM

PATRI CI A CHAPMAN descri bed her work with a brain injury support
group in Ketchikan, and she shared that her daughter had TBI.
She said that there were hundreds of people wth TBI in
Ket chi kan, yet there were not any local TBI experts. She
explained that her daughter qualified for a developnentally
di sabled waiver, even though she was brain injured, not
devel opnental |y di sabl ed. She described the limtations of the
wai ver, which instructed that service givers were not provided
during her daughter's napping tines. She enphasized the need
for specialized care for TBIs. She offered her belief that
there was better recovery for TBI when patients were in their
own community and had comunity support. She declared that
there was a lack of neuro counselors in Al aska. She announced
that many people in Ketchikan who suffered from TBI were not
able to find services, so they resorted to self nedication

4:25:51 PM
Co-Chair Herron cl osed public testinony.
4:26: 04 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL expl ained that a waiver was an exenption
to the Medicaid general rules. He asked about the problens with
getting the waiver.

4:27:20 PM

M5. HODGES recounted that the ABIN had recommended a waiver for
TBI since the conpletion of a needs assessnment for Al aska nmany
years before. She opined that there had not been any action
toward i nprovenent for the existing Medicaid programor to allow
an additional waiver. She cited three reasons for non support
by Medicaid for TBI: Medicaid eligibility criteria were based on
physi cal, not cognitive, issues; cognitive therapy was not a
conmponent in Medicaid; and the level of care would need to be
changed. She shared that other states had anended Medicaid and
included a | evel of care that included TBIs. She nentioned that
although SB 61 had suggested reconmendations, these did not
offer much direction to Honme and Community Based Services
( HCBS) .

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 13- March 10, 2009



4:29:01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said that the Departnent of Health and
Social Services (DHSS) had to apply for the waiver, and the
i ndi vidual had to qualify.

4:29:57 PM

M5. ARTUSO, in response to Representative Coghill, opined that
the Il evel of care was not well defined for the existing waivers.
She explained that the current definition for disability was
defined by functional disability, not cognitive disability. She
noted that nmany TBIs had cognitive disabilities, and not
functional disabilities; therefore, they did not qualify for
nmedi cal wai vers. She said that there were now evidence based
tests to docunent cognitive disability.

4:31: 17 PM
REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked about Al zhei mer's.
4:31:49 PM

VB. ARTUSO explained that Al zheiner's was a chronic,
debilitative condition that did not reverse, and could not be
treat ed. She said that these patients did well in assisted
living, with nedication that would slow the condition. She
explained that TBI was an injury that could heal, depending on
the level of severity, when given time and cognitive therapy.
She conpared that TBI necessitated a healing environnent,
whereas Al zheinmer's required a protective environnment.

4:33:46 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL reflected that the dilema was that both
required paynent for services and that the federal governnent
woul d not acknow edge sone of the Al zheinmer's issues, either.
4:34:18 PM

M5. HODGES said that the ABIN had recommended that the Medicaid
wai ver | anguage be witten to better define the cognitive
conponent for Al zheinmer's, as well.

4:34:49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA asked about the term 'universal worker.'

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -14- March 10, 2009



4:36:54 PM

M5. ARTUSO, in response to Representative Cissna, said that this

was not the type of care that the population needed. She
reported the best to be a day care, therapeutic, group
environnment, structured for their needs. She relayed that the

nati onal best practice standard for cognitive therapy were
exercises to allow recovery for parts of the brain. She added
that day care group settings were much nore econom cal than
i ndi vidual care in the hone.

4:38: 04 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA asked if telenedicine and telepsychiatry
woul d be successful for these patients.

4:38:39 PM

M5. ARTUSO agr eed. She explained that this was already being
i nplenented with the existing telenedicine progranms and being
devel oped with the tribal health facilities. She said that the
first prototype residential and day care program was being
devel oped in Southcentral Alaska, and that this would be the
nodel for smaller rural prograns. She shared that one node
allowed for educated and trained, t hough not | i censed,
provi ders. She offered her belief that this would allow create
nore job opportunities.

4:39: 56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked about the difference between TBI and
stroke, and each of the different therapies.

4:40: 36 PM

M5. ARTUSO expl ained that stroke was a decrease in the oxygen
and nutrient supply to an area of the brain. She said that
those brain cells ceased to function, and were either injured or
dead. She said that the cells don't conduct an inpulse, simlar
to an electric current. She explained that with a TBI, the
inpulse carrying tissue was sheared and was no |onger
conducti ve. She allowed that although these were two different
types of injuries, they sonmetinmes resulted in simlar cognitive
disabilities. She explained that each therapy program was
uni que to the individual; but that sonme therapies would work for

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -15- March 10, 2009



both types of injury to either recover or retrain another area
of the brain for conpensation.

4:42:42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked about a systens approach for
f undi ng.

4:43: 08 PM

M5. ARTUSO explained that, after the energency response, the
hospital evaluation, the cognitive screening, and the discharge,
there were limted resources for referral. She said that there
were no day care programs for cognitive therapy, and that
neur opsychol ogi sts were "for-pay" service. She allowed that if
the patient did not have insurance which paid for this, the
result was very |arge expenses. In response to a question from
Representative Coghill, she explained that nmany severe brain
injuries were transferred to Anchorage and Providence Hospital
but that once the patient returned to a rural area, there was
not a continuum of care.

4:44: 39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked for a definition for cognitive
t her apy.

4:45:11 PM

M5. ARTUSO responded that there were several types and that a
group of cognitive therapies were designed to neet the specific
needs of the patient.

4:45:45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked about ways to identify a cognitive
di sability.

4:47:27 PM

M5. ARTUSO reported that the nationally recognized | MPACT test
for cognitive disability showed results that were different than
with a devel opnental disability. She explained the necessity
for appropriate wording to a waiver Dbecause the current
qualifying tests for benefits did not allow for docunented,
evi dence based cognitive disability. She said that waivers only
al l owed for devel opnental disability.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 16- March 10, 2009



4:48: 54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES asked where the nmmjority of TBls were
occurring.

4:49:29 PM

M5. ARTUSO said that the majority of incidences were in the nost
popul ated area, Southcentral Al aska. She related that 34
percent were Al askan Nati ve.

4:50: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES clarified that a higher nunmber were in the
Anchorage region, but that the higher rate were outside
Anchor age. She asked about the type of services available with
a wai ver.

4:50:42 PM

M5. ARTUSO said that a day care cognitive therapy program was
being developed for the Matanuska-Susitna area, with a
residential program planned as the next stage. She assessed
that after this stage, there would be a needs evaluation to
determ ne whether to grow the Mat-Su capacity, or to build
smaller prograns in rural regions. She nentioned that the
stroke services program would be developed sinultaneously,
t hough separately. She reported that both programs would |ink
at some future tine.

4:51:55 PM

COCHAIR KELLER asked if the comunity health centers also
requi red waivers.

4:52:38 PM
MS. ARTUSO sai d yes.
4:52:52 PM

CO CHAIR KELLER asked if the Mat-Su Regional Medical Center was
the only center working on the TBI care program

M5. ARTUSO replied that no other <centers were currently
interested in pursuit of the entire program devel opnent.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -17- March 10, 2009



4:53:47 PM

M5. HODGES, in response to Co-Chair Keller, said that the TBI
statistics were based on five year averages.

M5. ARTUSO said that Texas and New Jersey both had TB
fatalities which pronpted the state l|legislatures’ to increase
awar eness.

4:54: 33 PM

M5. HODGES, in response to Co-Chair Keller, said that, since
1999, behavioral health centers were required to screen for
brain injuries. She explained that behavioral health focused on
cognitive, behavioral, and enotional aspects, but not the
occupational and physical therapy conponents. She said that
Al askans needed a coll aborative effort for all these therapies.

4:56:17 PM

M5. HODGES, in response to Representative Cssna, said that the
Al aska Mental Health Trust Authority (AWHTA) had been supportive
with noney toward brain injury training. She expressed the need
for general fund financial allocations to continue the training.
She said that an introduction to brain injury curriculum had
been developed, and that this program would teach 15 rural
| eaders to becone nentors and the point of contact in their
comunity. She acknow edged that a lot of training was still
necessary to support the workforce.

4:57: 47 PM
ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the conmttee, the House

Health and Social Services Standing Conmittee neeting was
adj ourned at 4:57 p.m

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 18- March 10, 2009



